
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
          

 

 
 
 
 
Jennifer Sheetz 
Board President 
Division 5 
 

Matt Kelly 
Board Vice President 
Division 7 
 

Cinthia Saylors 
Board Secretary 
Division 1 
 

Grant Goold 

Board Member 
Division 2 
 

Randy Orzalli 
Board Member 
Division 3 
 

Ted Wood 
Board Member  
Division 4 
 

D’Elman Clark 
Board Member  
Division 6 
 

Gay Jones 
Board Member 
Division 8 
 

Vacant 
Board Member 
Division 9 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

             

 
Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

  Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 
    

      10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 . Mather, California 95655 . Phone (916) 859-4300 . Fax (916) 859-3700 

 

 AMENDED AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS - SPECIAL MEETING  

 

Thursday, April 23, 2020 – 6:00 PM 
 

Held Remotely at Cisco Webex Meetings 
+1-408-418-9388 

Access code: 965 257 643 # 
 

The mission of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District is to provide professional  
and compassionate protection, education and service to our community. 

 
 

The Governor has declared a State of Emergency to exist in California as a 
result of the threat of COVID-19 (aka the “Coronavirus”).  The Governor 
issued Executive Order N-25-20 and N-29-20, which directs Californians to 
follow public health directives including canceling large gatherings. The 
Executive Order also allows local legislative bodies to hold meetings via 
conference calls while still satisfying state transparency requirements.   
 
The Governor has also issued Executive Order N-33-20, prohibiting people 
from leaving their homes or places of residence except to access necessary 
supplies and services or to engage in specified critical infrastructure 
employment. 

The Public’s health and well-being are the top priority for the Board of 
Directors of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District and you are urged to 
take all appropriate health safety precautions. To facilitate this process, the 
meeting of the Board will be available by: 

Held Remotely at Cisco Webex Meetings 
+1-408-418-9388 

Access code: 965 257 643# 
 

Note: The meeting is being held solely by telephonic means and will be 
made accessible to members of the public seeking to attend and to address 
the Board solely through the phone number set forth above, except that 
members of the public seeking to attend and to address the Board who 
require reasonable accommodations to access the meeting, based on 
disability or other reasons, should contact the following person at least 
twenty-four (24) hours in advance of a Regular meeting to make 
arrangements for such reasonable accommodations:   

Melissa Penilla 
Board Clerk 

(916) 859-4305 
Penilla.melissa@metrofire.ca.gov 

The Board will convene in open session at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

Todd Harms 
Fire Chief 



 

 
     

     
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA                           THURSDAY, APRIL 23, 2020 

 

2 
 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District  
    

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 . Mather, California 95655 . Phone (916) 859-4300 . Fax (916) 859-3700 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
METRO CABLE ANNOUNCEMENT 
The Open Session Meeting is videotaped for cablecast on Metro Cable 14.  Replay on Monday, 
April 27th at 6:00 pm and Wednesday, April 29th at 2:00 pm on Channel 14; Webcast at 
www.sacmetrocable.tv.   
 

PUBLIC OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS MATTERS OF PUBLIC INTEREST WITHIN DISTRICT 
JURISDICTION INCLUDING ITEMS ON OR NOT ON AGENDA 

The Board of Directors of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District appreciates and encourages public 
interest and welcomes questions and opinions at its meetings.  Public members desiring to address the 
Board are requested to first be recognized by the presiding officer and identify themselves for the record. 
The presiding officer may in the interest of time and good order limit the number of public member 
presentations.  Speakers’ comments will be limited to three minutes (Per Section 31 of the Board of 
Directors Policies and Procedures). 
 
In accordance with Section 31 of the Board of Directors Policies and Procedures, members of the Public 
requesting their written comments be read into the meeting record must be present or have a 
representative present to read their comments during the time allotted. 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 
Matters of routine approval including but not limited to action summary minutes, referral of issues to 
committee, committee referrals to the full Board, items that require yearly approval, declaration of surplus 
equipment, and other consent matters.  Consent Agenda is acted upon as one unit unless a Board 
member requests separate discussion and/or action. 

 

   Page No. 
CONSENT ITEMS                                                                                                     
1. Action Summary Minutes           5 
  Recommendation:  Approve the Action Summary Minutes for the Regular Board 
  meeting of April 9, 2020.  
 
2. Equipment Lease Financing                                                                                          8                          

 Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Fire Chief to enter into an 
Equipment Lease with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 

 
3.  Resolution – Extending Proclamation of a Local Emergency Regarding                22      

Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) and Ratifying the Order of the County of 
Sacramento 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution extending the proclamation of a local  
Emergency and ratifying the Order of the County of Sacramento. 

 
4. Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with SRFECC for a                                      36 

Disaster Recovery Site 
 Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Fire Chief to execute  

an MOU with the SRFECC. 
 
 
 

http://www.sacmetrocable.tv/


 

 
     

     
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA                           THURSDAY, APRIL 23, 2020 

 

3 
 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District  
    

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 . Mather, California 95655 . Phone (916) 859-4300 . Fax (916) 859-3700 

 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

 
1.   Fire Chief Employment Agreement – Todd Harms – (General Counsel Lavra)        23 
 Recommendation: Receive Presentation/Approve Employment Agreement  
 
2.  COVID-19 Related Hardship Leave Policy (Deputy Chief Casentini)                         33 
  Recommendation: Approve the COVID-19 Related Hardship Leave Policy 

 

3. Board Director Vacancy – Division 9                             ** 
 A.  Recommendation: Interview Candidates to Fill Position 
 B.  Recommendation: Appoint Director / Administer Oath of Office 
 
REPORTS 
1. PRESIDENT’S REPORT—(President Sheetz) 

 
2. FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT—(Chief Harms) 
  OPERATIONS’ REPORT – (Deputy Chief Bridge) 
 
3.        SMFD – FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 522 REPORT 
 
4. COMMITTEE AND DELEGATE REPORTS   

All Committee Meetings will be held at the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District Board Room, 
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, California unless otherwise specified. 

A.        Executive Committee – (President Sheetz) 
             Next Meeting: TBD 
 
 B.        Communications Center JPA – (DC Shannon) 

Next Meeting:    April 14, 2020 at 9:00 AM 
 

 C. California Fire & Rescue Training JPA – (DC Shannon)  
             Next Meeting:   June 18, 2020 at 4:00 PM 
 
 D.        Finance and Audit Committee – (Director Orzalli) 
  Next Meeting:  TBD 
 
 E. Policy Committee – (Director Goold) 
  Next Meeting:   TBD 
 
BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

1. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9 (a) –one (1) 
matter of Workers Compensation Settlement Authority.   
John Carr and the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

           Claim # SMDO - 549503 – Workers Compensation Settlement Authority  
Colin Connor of Lenahan, Lee, Slater, Pearse and Majernik 



 

 
     

     
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA                           THURSDAY, APRIL 23, 2020 

 

4 
 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District  
    

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 . Mather, California 95655 . Phone (916) 859-4300 . Fax (916) 859-3700 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
NEXT BOARD MEETING(S): 
Unless specified differently, all meetings of the Board are held at Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, 
10545 Armstrong Avenue, Mather, CA 
 

 Next Board Meeting – May 14, 2020 at 6:00 PM 

 

The following action and presentation items are scheduled for the next board meeting agenda.  
Board members are requested to identify additional action or presentation items they desire to 
be scheduled on the agenda. 
 
ANTICIPATED AGENDA ITEMS:   TBD 
 
Original Agenda Posted on April 20, 2020 
Amended Agenda Posted on April 21, 2020 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Melissa Penilla, Clerk of the Board 
* No written report 
**  Separate Attachment    
 
DISABILITY INFORMATION: 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (916) 859-4305.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











PAGE 2 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

As authorized by Resolution 2019-064 adopted August 22, 2019, the District also intends 
to reimburse the cost of certain equipment listed, but already purchased, with financing 
proceeds. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The interest rate for the proposed financing is 1.256%.  Semi-annual payments over 
the five-year term of the financing would be approximately $467,000, with the first 
semi-annual payment due in FY 2020/21. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends adopting the Resolution to authorize the Fire Chief and/or Chief 
Financial Officer to enter into an Equipment Lease with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 

Submitted By: Approved By: 

______________________________ ______________________________ 
Amanda Thomas Todd Harms 
Chief Financial Officer Fire Chief 

9





















































COVID-19 Related Hardship Leave 
01.018.01 
4/24/2020 

2. Paid leave under this policy shall not count against other accrued paid leave the
employee may have available. However, the Fire Chief may take into account the
amount of other available accrued leave when deciding whether to grant paid leave
under this section.

3. The decision whether to grant or deny leave under this policy is entirely within the
discretion of the Fire Chief, and shall not be subject to appeal or any grievance
procedure.

4. This policy is effective until December 31, 2020, inclusive, and as of that day
expires without further action by the Fire Chief or District.

Procedure 

1. Employees wishing to request leave under this policy should notify their immediate
supervisor and the Fire Chief as soon as possible. The Fire Chief will promptly
approve or disapprove the request.

21Page 

P35 



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District
10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite #200, Mather, CA 95655 · (916) 859-4300 · Fax (916) 859-3700 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

TODD HARMS
Fire Chief  

DATE: April 23, 2020 

TO: Board of Directors 

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for a Disaster Recovery Site 

BACKGROUND
The Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District (Metro Fire) and the Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS 
Communications Center (SRFECC) executed a Lease Agreement for Metro Fire’s property 
located at 3121 Gold Canal Drive in Rancho Cordova in 2014, for an initial term of three (3) years. 
A lease renewal was negotiated at the end of the initial term in 2017, extending the term to June 
30, 2020.  

DISCUSSION
Earlier this year, the SRFECC notified Metro Fire that it did not intend to renew the current Lease 
Agreement, and is now in the process of relocating to a new site. The SRFECC did, however, 
identify the need for a space to accommodate a disaster recovery (DR) site to serve as a backup 
communication center in the event that the SRFECC experiences a prolonged disruption of 
service at its primary site.  

Metro Fire has identified an appropriate space at its headquarters building located at 10545 
Armstrong Avenue in Mather to accommodate the SRFECC’s DR site needs. The space is located 
inside the area previously leased by the California Fire and Rescue Training Authority, whose 
lease expired on March 31, 2020.  

Staff has worked with the SRFECC to draft the attached Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
for the use of the space. If approved, the MOU allows the SRFECC to use the space as a DR site 
and memorialized the terms and conditions associated with its use. 

FISCAL IMPACT
Metro Fire estimates its cost associated with this MOU is nominal. Therefore, Metro Fire will not 
charge SRFECC rent for the space as long as Metro Fire is a member of the SRFECC. 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the adoption of the attached resolution authorizing the Fire Chief or his 
designee to execute the attached MOU. 

Submitted by: 

Erin Castleberry Jeff Frye 
Administrative Specialist Chief Development Officer 

36



Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District

10545 Armstrong Ave., Suite 200 · Mather, CA 95655 · Phone (916) 859-4300 · Fax (916) 859-3702 

Serving Sacramento and Placer Counties 

TODD HARMS
Fire Chief 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-____

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL FIRE/EMS COMMUNICATIONS CENTER

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District, hereafter “District”, is the owner of a certain real 
property located at 10545 Armstrong Avenue, in Mather, California, hereafter "HQ"; and 

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center, hereafter “SRFECC”, provides 
communication and dispatch services to its Members Agencies and contracting entities including the 
District; and 

WHEREAS, the SRFECC requires a Disaster Recovery site which would allow the SRFECC to quickly 
resume mission-critical functions following a disruption; and 

WHEREAS, the SRFECC desires to establish a Disaster Recovery site at HQ; and 

WHEREAS, District is willing to grant the same to the SRFECC, upon the promises, terms, conditions, 
and covenants set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire 
District, a public entity established under the laws of the State of California, does hereby: 

1. Authorize the Fire Chief or his designee to execute the Memorandum of Understanding attached.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 23rd day of April, 2020, by the following vote, to wit: 

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:  

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT

By:_____________________________________ 
President, Board of Directors 

Attested by: 

_________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 

37



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRICT

AND

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL FIRE/EMS
COMMUNICATIONS CENTER

38



Memorandum of Understanding for Disaster Recovery Site 
Between Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District and Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications 

At 10545 Armstrong Avenue 

This Memorandum ("Guarantee") is executed as of the ____ day of _________________, 2020, by 
SACRAMENTO METROPOLITAN FIRE DISTRCT, an autonomous Special District established under 
California Health and Safety Code Section 13800, (“District”), in favor of the SACRAMENTO REGIONAL 
FIRE/EMS COMMUNICATIONS CENTER, a Joint Powers Authority organized pursuant to the provisions of 
the California Government Code Section 6500, (“JPA”) as the communications and dispatch services for 
Member Agencies and contracting entities, with respect to the following circumstances: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, District is the owner of certain real property 10545 Armstrong Avenue, hereafter "HQ", 
located in Mather, California; and 

WHEREAS, JPA provides communication and dispatch services to its Members Agencies and contracting 
entities including the District; and 

WHEREAS, JPA requires a Disaster Recovery (“DR”) site which would allow the JPA to quickly resume 
mission-critical functions following a disruption; and  

WHEREAS, JPA desires to establish a DR site at HQ; and 

WHEREAS, District is willing to grant the same to JPA, upon the promises, terms, conditions, and 
covenants set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the promises, terms, conditions, and covenants contained herein, 
District and JPA hereby agree as follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions below, the District has agreed to allow the JPA to use Room 324 
at HQ for the DR. Room 324 is depicted in Exhibit A, SMFD East Wing Concept Design, attached hereto 
and incorporated by this reference.  

1. JPA shall use Room 324 exclusively for the intended purpose as DR site. JPA may also use Room 324
for training new dispatchers (“Academy”). During the Academy, JPA shall make reasonable efforts to not
interfere with District’s usage of Classroom 1, as depicted in Exhibit A, for events such as meeting,
conferences and training.

2. JPA shall have continual access to Room 324. District shall issue key cards to JPA provided that key
cards shall be issued to essential personnel only. In the event that the DR is activated, District shall issue
key cards to all JPA dispatchers, supervisors, management and board members.

39



3. JPA shall have also have access to Room 234 (Server/IDF Room) to install IT and communications
equipment necessary for the operation of the DR provided that said installation does not interfere with,
or compromise, District operations.  Such access shall not be unreasonably withheld by District.

4. JPA shall be granted use of District network infrastructure, at the discretion of the District, in order to
accomplish the needs of operating the DR site. Such infrastructure shall be supported and maintained by
the District.

5. The District shall provide reasonable notice to JPA when any maintenance is performed on the
network that may impact connectivity in the DR site.

6. JPA shall have access to Room 226 during normal business hours, or at such other times as are
reasonably designated by District, to install and maintain JPA CAD server equipment; provided, however,
that such access is coordinated with District and complies with this MOU and all other reasonable
restrictions and conditions District may impose through any written amendment to this MOU.

7. JPA shall have the right to install any furnishings, equipment, and trade fixtures in the DR required for
the operation of the DR. Upon termination of this MOU, JPA shall remove all property within thirty (30)
days following termination of this MOU.

8. District shall not charge JPA for rent or utilities for the use of the DR as long the District is a member
of the Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center Joint Powers Authority.

9. This MOU may be terminated at any time upon written mutual consent of the parties.

10. JPA shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the District and its elected representatives, officers,
agents, volunteers and employees from and against all liabilities, losses, costs, suits, claims, judgments,
expenses, fines or demands of any kind (including, but not limited to, costs of investigation, attorney
fees, court costs and expert fees) resulting from any network malfunction, data breach, injury, damage
or death to any person or property, of any nature whatsoever, and arising out of JPA’s use of the DR site
as set forth in this MOU.  JPA shall not be liable for any injuries, death or damage to the extent that such
injury, death or damage is caused by the negligence of the District, its elected representatives, officers,
agents, volunteers or employees.  This Section shall survive this MOU.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank

40



10. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this MOU to be duly executed as of the day
and year first written below.

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 

By: ________________________________________ 

Print Name:__________________________________ 

Title:_______________________________________ 

Date:_______________________________________ 

Sacramento Regional Fire/EMS Communications Center 

By: ________________________________________ 

Print Name:__________________________________ 

Title:_______________________________________ 

Date:_______________________________________ 

41


	Consent Item 4_MOU with SRFECC.pdf
	ADP526F.tmp
	RESOLUTION NO. 2020-____


	Consent Item 4_MOU with SRFECC.pdf
	ADP526F.tmp
	RESOLUTION NO. 2020-____

	ADP182.tmp
	RESOLUTION NO. 2020-____





